STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR VIRGINIA
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 15, 2025

DRAFT MINUTES

General Jumper called the virtual meeting to order at 9 am.

Council members attending virtually: Walter Curt, Eric Chewning, Lindsay Fryer, John
Jumper, Charlie King, Delceno Miles, Jennifer Montague, Cheryl Oldham and John
Olsen.

Council members absent: Jason El Koubi, William Harvey, Doug Straley and Steven
Taylor.

Staff members attending: Lee Andes, Alisha Bazemore, Joe DeFilippo, Alan Edwards,
Jodi Fisler, Grace Khattar, Tod Massa, Jessica Minnis-McClain, Laura Osberger, Paula
Robinson, Emily Salmon and Kristin Whelan.

Notable attendees: Ambria Wood from the Office of Attorney General.

ACTION ON STATEWIDE STRATEGIC PLAN

Ms. Salmon presented the the finaldraft of the statewide strategic plan. She reviewed
the Council's work on the project earlier this year. She reviewed the Council's previous
work from the last several meetings. She briefly reviewed the plan and described the
additional information available in the appendices.

Mr. Curt asked for clarification on some of the wording. Ms. Salmon highlighted the final
changes made in response to Council input at the October Council meeting. Among the
updates resulting from the October discussion:

1. The plan title, cover page, and graphics were updated (for vision and three
goals).

2. At the request of Council members, the word "prosperity" was replaced with
another word. For example, in the measure for vision, “mobility” replace
“prosperity.”

3. Updated the measure for goal 2 - completion. At the request of Council during
the Oct. Meeting - added four-year graduation rate trends to the definition and
added the corresponding data source and baseline data.

4. At the request of Council during the Oct. meeting, staff added persisted (first to
second semester) in addition to persisted after four years. Since the measure
definition only lists persisted, the only changes were adding the data source and
baseline data to reflect persisted from the first to the second semester.

Council supported staff's recommendation to keep the workforce alignment and college
participation rate measures as is. (We can track WCG credentials issued and GED
participation rates internally).



Ms. Salmon introduced the two plans of action, approving the plan or editing further.
Council chose to adopt the plan, effective January 1.

General Jumper asked for clarification about the baseline workforce credential
attainment number. Mr. Massa stated that the number doesn’t capture all of the
workforce credentials earned.

General Jumper asked for a motion to approve the Statewide Strategic Plan. Ms. Miles
motioned for a vote on the resolution. Ms. Osberger read the resolution into the record
which was seconded by Mr. Olsen. After a roll call vote, Council approved the resolution
unanimously.

BE IT RESOLVED that the State Council of Higher Education for Virginia adopts the
document, Developing Tomorrow's Talent: The Virginia Plan for Higher Education, as
the next statewide strategic plan for higher education in the Commonwealth, effective
January 1, 2026, as discussed and agreed upon by Council on December 15, 2025.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the State Council of Higher Education directs agency

staff to publish the new statewide strategic plan for Virginia higher education and to
distribute it widely after January 1, 2026.

DISCUSSION OF THE INSTITUTIONAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS (IPS)

Mr. Andes opened the discussion on the IPS review. He noted that Ms. Miles and Mr.
King agreed to serve on the workgroup examining the IPSs. Mr. Andes provided
background on the current standards and described how the workgroup formed and
their work thus far.

The work group has created a work plan to present to the Council. He asked Ms. Miles
to continue leading the discussion. Ms. Miles described the goals for the plan update.
Mr. King added that the updates are necessary because the current standards are more
than 20 years old. He stated the importance of obtaining input from the institutions and
the money committee staff of the General Assembly (GA). General Jumper stressed
that the Council must insist on feedback and accuracy in the measures. He stated that
the insistence on honest reporting allows the Council to put resources where they are
needed. Mr. Curt noted his criticism of the current way that enrollment is measured. Mr.
Olsen added that he wants to examine the marginal cost of serving the next students
and how Virginia's current policies make it difficult to compete with other states. General
Jumper suggested a direct letter to the Boards of Visitors outlining the workgroup's
results. Mr. Olsen suggested that Name, Image and Likeness be added to the
discussion of the workgroup. Mr. Fleming noted that the landscape surrounding
collegiate athletics is shifting and may be hard to examine. Mr. Andes pointed out that
the IPSs are created within the GA, and the measures chosen by the Council can be
used to highlight what the Council would like the GA to take up.

Ms. Miles asked the other members to contact the staff on the workgroup with
suggestions.

DISCUSSION OF ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS




Mr. Massa led the discussion about the updated enrollment projections. He noted that
overall, a significant drop in full-time equivalent enroliment (FTE). Mr. Massa suggested
that the current FTE calculation is about 30 years old. The institutions report they expect
more part-time enroliments and a small increase in graduate students.

Mr. Massa discussed the implications of the new graduate loan caps. More students
will be enrolled part-time. Ms. Montague asked about the predicted enrollment
reduction. Mr. Massa noted that, historically, during periods of economic change, more
people enroll in graduate programs. Master's program enrollment, especially for the
terminal degree programs, is expected to increase. Mr. Massa suggested that private
lenders may step in to fill the gap left by the new loan caps. The challenges with the
$200,000 cap for medical programs are that it may not cover tuition and fees, and it is
very difficult for students to be employed while in these programs.

Mr. Curt asked about international enroliment. Mr. Massa stated that it remains a mixed
bag, with no obvious, observable trends. Mr. Curt asked how the loss of international
graduate students impacted graduate student enroliment. The loss was 1153 students
(headcount). Mr. Curt asked for the total headcount in professional and graduate
schools. Mr. Curt asked for elaboration on the data and projections from the Weldon
Cooper Center (WCC). Mr. Massa said he would add the WCC numbers to the report's
chart.

General Jumper suggested that staff review the FTE numbers from the institutions once
the WCC releases its updated data in January. The purpose of presenting that data is
to present an argument for more flexible out-of-state student tuition incentives to attract
more out-of-state students.

Mr. Olsen asked about what levers SCHEV has to disapprove programs (rather than
just approve new programs). Mr. Fleming pointed out that the BOV members had just
attended the orientation, during which SCHEYV introduced the questions and data the
boards should be looking at. SCHEV's input on enrollment is just one factor in the
board's decisions. He noted that the January agenda will include a discussion of the
program approval changes. General Jumper suggested that this issue is also a topic
that Council should communicate directly with the BOVs through a letter in January.
The institutions' projections do not match the reality of the drop in the number of high
school students. Mr. Curt pointed out some additional concerns he continues to have
with the reported data.

Ms. Fryer asked if Council has any leverage if the new administration doesn't address
these problems. Mr. Massa pointed out that, under the law, the Council's charge is to
approve or disapprove the numbers. A disapproval would be a first in a long time.
General Jumper that the Council may need to sell this themselves in the General
Assembly. Ms. Miles agreed that the Council needs to be more proactive. Mr. Olsen
pointed out that everyone has a role to play in the success of the Virginia Higher
Education system. He suggested that the Council create a list of recommendations for
the new administration and the institutions, and a clear description of the problem.



The details from Mr. Massa’s presentation are available at
https://collegeoutcomes.schev.edu/rdPage.aspx?rdReport=Reporting.Projections.242
5 OctoberRevisions. home.

DISCUSSION OF V-TOP

Mr. Fleming opened the discussion of the Virginia Talent + Opportunity program. He
provided some background information and details about the funding. The number of
registrations in credit-bearing internship courses grew year-over-year by 30%, and the
program is having its intended impacts. Virginia’s success has garnered national
attention. He pointed to the VSU program where first-year students participate in
project-based work with IBM. The metrics support the quality of Dr.. Bazemore's and
her team's work.

Dr. Bazemore highlighted the program's successes and detailed the activities. V-TOP
reimagined the partnership approach with institutions through Institution-Led
Partnerships (ILPs). This approach encourages communication between institutions.
SCHEV’s role lies in career awareness, exploration and preparation.

Dr. Bazemore described the V-TOP partnership with District C to provide a reimagined
work experience. Titled Teamship VA, students can work with an organization to solve
a real-world problem within the organization. Dr. Bazemore shared some of the
outcomes from the grants the V-TOP distributed since 2024. She also described how
V-TOP works to educate employers on the elements of high-quality

internship programs.

Dr. Bazemore discussed outcomes from the VTOP program. The total number of
students with credit-bearing internship experience since inception is 45,995. Other
outcomes data will be available in February.

Dr. Bazemore discussed the results of the SB1280 work group, which created
definitions and standards for work-based learning. The group worked on defining the
following:
* Internships
* Micro-internships
* Project-based learning
» Cooperative Education (Co-Op)
Field placement, practicum or clinical experience
Research
Apprenticeship
Service learning and civic engagement
Entrepreneurship
Social entrepreneurship
Public service
Volunteerism and community service

Mr. Curt asked about the housing for students who live in other regions from where they
are interning. Dr. Bazemore explained that many institutions have worked to provide
students with opportunities within the classroom or short-term opportunities during the
semester. Mr. Curt questioned the benefit of the short-term activities. Ms. Oldham


https://collegeoutcomes.schev.edu/rdPage.aspx?rdReport=Reporting.Projections.2425_OctoberRevisions._home
https://collegeoutcomes.schev.edu/rdPage.aspx?rdReport=Reporting.Projections.2425_OctoberRevisions._home

described the type of work that she, with the Chamber of Commerce, offered more
students more opportunities, even in these limited timeframes. She described it as a
commitment for all parties, but the intermediary (V-TOP, the Chamber) takes on much
of the onboarding burden.

Dr. Bazemore introduced the Council to a dashboard rolling out in January that tracks
the progress of the program initiatives. Mr. Olsen asked about the data sources from
Virginia Works. A new data-sharing agreement across the greater DC, VA and MD
region will enhance data. Mr. Olsen asked if there has been an increase in internships
or if the data collection has just improved.

OLD BUSINESS

No old business was voiced.

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Curt suggested that the minutes needed to be more detailed. Mr. Olsen suggested
that the presentations be included in the body of the agenda book going forward.

RECEIPT OF PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment had been requested, and none was provided spontaneously.

MOTION TO ADJOURN

General Jumper adjourned the meeting at 11:45 am.

John Jumper
Council Chair

Kristin Whelan
Coordinator of Board and Executive
Operations



